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THE PRESIDENT'S REPORT

As was the case during the Fall quanter, much of your President’s time was
spent on historic preservation. Prudence dictates that the identity of the historic
heme offered the Society be not publicized yet. It appears that a private
foundation will be formed by the donor to accommodate the proposed generous
endowment. As The Packel goes o press, the matter is where it belongs: In
the hands of a legal firm, which will no donbt be calling on the Society for
advice and assistance soon.

More repairs to our county historic buildings will have been accomplished by
the time you read this,

By far the most exciting news your President can report is the developing
story of the Willow Del Commissary. Your Society fielded a search team on a
snowy January day and members Buddy Overbey, Danny Ricketts, your Editor,
and some out of town visitors located a vital part of the facility. (See
Accompanying story).

Membership hovers near the 600 level, but do not be surprised 1o see it climb
to near 700 by years end. If you have net paid your membership dues yet, please
do so before or at the February meeting,

The Socicty lent its suppori to (he Christmas in Colonial Chatham
celebration on December 2nd and made it a erowning success. Met receipts were
in the $4,000 range. Dozens of Society members looked elagant in their colonial
attire, and, for a day, the wwn revened w an 18th century village.

The Packet is always receptive to the submission of stories from your
childhood in Pittsylvania County and there are jobs waiting 1o be done in the
Society. Interested? HEM

THE FEBRUARY MEETING

Gary Grant, noted Danville Author/Historian and member of the
Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission, was a founding father of the
Lady Astor Preservation Trust. As much as any living person, he is
responsible for preserving the premier historic Danville home which
was the birthplace of Nancy Langhorne, Viscountess Astor, the first
woman to sitin the British House of Commons. her sister, Irene, whowas
also born there, married the artist, Charles Dana Gibson, He immortal-
ized his wife asthe Gibson Girl, the international fashion ideal of the turn
of the century. Both were granddaughters of Pittsylvania's historically
prominent Elisha Ford Keen.

Gary will cover the historically important story of the L&nghurnes,

t who, incidentally, were related to some of our PHS members.

]l Program Chairperson Frances Hurt, who will introduce the speaker,
informs us that those present will enjoy hearing the miraculoos story of
how this birthplace of two world renowned natives was saved from
extinetion and destruction by dedicated people.

Meeting time is 7:30 p.m. on Fehrnary 19th in the 1813 Clerk's Dffice
in Chatham. The Packet foresees this as another outstanding presenta-

tign,




Chatham's Great F:‘ire3

Large Portion of Town Destroyed 94 Years Ago

By Preston B. Moses

When John Pride Hunt Sr. closed his large grocery store on the night of March
14, 1902, little did he think that a large part of Chatham's Main Street husiness
section would be destroyed before daybreak the next morning.

When the wealthy Chatham grocer went o bed that night, he remarked w his
wile, "This March wind is really blowing tonight.”

Tt was about 12:30 o'clock later that night that Mr. Hunt was awakened by the
wwn constable banging on his front door yelling, "Mr. Hunt, your storc is on
fire"

He jumped out of bed, slipped on his pants, shoes and shirt. Woke his son,
Pride. They started racing out the front door as Mr. Hunt's wife, Mally, was
hollering, "Put on a sweater, it's mighty windy out there.” The two didn't stop
but kept running When the father and son arrived at the store and opened the
front door, black smoke was so thick they couldn't enter. It was only a few
minutcs later that the building became engulfed in flames.

All this time the town's fire bell in the courthouse clock tower was ringing
incessantly bringing out a large crowd of citizens who gathered to watch as the
flames began licking out of the windows of the store.

At that moment, a loud explosion was heard, Mr, Hunt knew it was the gun
powder and shotgun ammunition that were part of stock on the shelves that way
exploding - tearing away the walls between the adjoining buildings,

The March blustery wind was whipping the fire, quickly spreading it in beth
directions.

"Where is the fire department?” was being asked by the people who came ©
watch in amazement as the fire in all its fury seemed sure to bring the town
down,

Bul the wwn had no fire department as such like the town has today. Then it
had about 200 fest of cotton hose that rolled up on a two wheel push-pull carriel
that would be brought out by volunteers for a local fire.

The hose was old and leaked sc badly it had been sent to the factory o have il
relined. It was not in Chatham at time of the fire in 1902 that night.

The March win was gathering force and so was the fire, It spread to engulf Dr.
John Anderson's office, there on the two-story frame building occupied by
George W, White, local tinner. It roared on to destroy Adkins Jewelry Store, and
there was a loud moan from the crowd when the Names spread nonhward to
Chatham Hotel. Smoke and fire quickly began to pour from the hotel windows
ag it burst into flame.

The fire roared southward destroying Lanier's Furniture Swore next door to
Hunt's grocery. It jumped across the alleyway to the DeMoit frame building
{later known as Orverbey's Hardware.)

The fast moving flames made short order of several small frame buildings
further down the stroct including two saloons, and a shoe hamess repair shop
where the street car cafe is today.

The Seymore Livery Stable off to the southside of Depot Street (Route 57)
had a large stock of hay at the side of its building. Sparks flying from the
burning frame buildings set the hay on fire. However, volunicers with rakes and
pitchforks managed to extinguish the hay-fire and saved the building. (It was
later purchased by Whitehead brothers for a livery stable.)



In 1955 Jack Hunt (grandson of J.P. Hunt Sr) converted it into Hant
Chevrolet garage. (It is now the offices of the Pittsylvania Social Services
Department.)

When the fire was first roaring at the Hunt Store, so much heat was generated
that it sel a fire 10 J. Wyatt Whitehead Department Store and C.A. Stutz Grocery
Store across the street, and the heat cavsed the glass windows to pop out of the
~0l hall in the brick building which is now the Chatham Square Restaurant.

Voluntcers came to the rescue of the Whitchead and Stutz buildings by using
soaking wel blankets to smother out the blaze and thus preventing the fire from
jumping across the street.

At that year (1902), there were wood plank sidewalks along Chatham's Main
Street. The fire that wiped out such a large section of building on the west side

of Main Street also bumned swav the plank walk along with the posts that
provided the support for kerosene lantern lights at night.

Reflecting back to Chatham's great fire of 1902, it is recalled as being the
wown's worst fire. It destroyed everything on the west side of Main Street from
what iz now Central Fidelity Bank to the Dollar General Store in the bottom,

No one ever knew whal swaried whe fire on that windy March night 94 years
ago in Hont's Grocery Store which 15 now the Pizza Place,

POSTSCRIPT: One of Chatham's distingnished citizens was born the night
that Chatharn’s great fire was raging.

Dr. and Mrs. John M. Jomes (Chatham druggist) resided in a dwelling just a
coople hundred feet to the rear of the Chatham Hotel. While the holel was
huming down on the fateful night of March 15, 1902, Mrs. Jones gave birth (o a
E

This was Langhome Jones who became a leading Chatham Attorney, President
aof the Virginia State Bar Association, member of the Virginia General
Asgsembly, Superintendent of the Presbyterian Church Sunday School for 33
years and Judge of the 22nd Judicial Circuit.

Incidentally, while Mrs. Jones was giving birth to her son, the house caught
fire from the shower of sparks coming from the roaring blaze in the hotel
“rehmteers managed to extinguish the fire by using wet blankets.

Editor's Note: Preston Moses is a refired Editor of the Star-
Tribune., An active member of the Pitsylvania Historical
Solnty, he also is a well-known artist and former Editor of The
Packet.

THE NOVEMBER MEETING

Scores of Society members present had the opportunity to view,
touch, and marvel at the exquisite Society ywned Booker Stone cover-
letsat the 1813 Clerk's Office in Chatham. Moreover, they were treated
te a remarkable lecture on antebellum textile and weaving techniques
by one of the nation's best authorities on the subject.

The speaker, Lynwood Wright of Dan River Mills, delighted the
crowd with consummate wit, while he used his inordinate knowledge to
explain why the coverlets are so treasnred.

Program Chairperson, Frances Hurt extended herself to procure the
coverlets from storage in Martinsville and had them on atiractive
display at the meeting.

Thank you Frances, for arranging and conducting this extraordinary
nrogram,
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The Willow Del Commissary

Pittsylvania’s Secret Confederate Supply Base

By Herman Melton

After the eraption at Fort Sumter in April of 1861, hundreds of Pittsylvanians
rallied o the Confederate colors as the first tocsin sounded. At their forefront was
the popular Isaac Hughes Watson, a man of property, mainly in the manufacture
of tobaceo. [saac Watson descended from Thomas Watson I, known as "The
Scetsman” and the founder of the family in Pittsylvania County. he was a very
early seuler, having patented land on Cherrystone Creek around 1740, Thomas
Watson II maintained his father's holdings and perpetuated the dynasty near
Chatham.

John Watson Sr. was a son of old Thomas and purchased land on Harpen
Creek during the Celonial era, thus forming another branch of the family, TL was
into this family that Isaac Hughes Watson was born, and by 1861, he was the
owner of Willow Diel, the Watson plantation of Harpen Creak.

Isaac Watson was in full sympathy with the Scuthern cause, and soom headed
up a company of volunteers called the Pigg River Invincibles. Watson was
commissioned a Captain and the Invincibles became Company C, 2nd Battalion
of the 46th Virginia Regiment - a part of the Wise Legion CSA. This unit, also
known as the Wise Brigadc, saw most of its service in what is now West
Virginia.

Watson was not reglected wo his command in 1862 and returned home. There
was chaog on the home front and the Confederate government needed hiz service
badly. As a Captain, he was assigned to the Confederate Quartermaster Corps and
given the task of collecting all kinds of farm produce such as com, wheat, catile
and hogs o be delivered to General Lee's Army.

The need was critical and eventually the Tax in Kind Burean was formed and
administrated by the Confederate Quartermaster General. A "tax in kind" was
levied on agricultural produce beginning in 1863. After reserving specificd
quantities for their own use, farmers and planters were required to pay and deliver
to the Confedarate government, one-tenth of the wheat, com, oats, rye
buckwheat, rice, potatoes, hay, beans, sugar, molasses, cotton, wool, tobacco
and peas.

Depots were founded and maintained by the Subsistence Department of the
Commissary General's Office. According to records in the archives of the
Government of the CSA, Virginia's depots were located at Richmond, Danvillz,
Lynchburg, Dublin, Boykins, Milford, Charlottesville and Staunton.

The Tax In Kind Act provided for the appointment of Quanermasiers by
Congressional Disiricts, and their assistants were appoinied to collect and
distribute the produce received.

With service to the Confederacy foremost in hismindIsaac Watson went at his
job with alacrity no doubt.

In almost complete secrecy, the dynamic Watson founded a huge commissary
at Willow Del. According to a Watson descendentfchronicler, Henson Overbey,
now deccased, he operated the commissary without the knowledge of county
citizens. Overbey wrote that Willow Del consisted of hundreds of acres and that
the commissary was located in an obscure part of the plantation where its stores
would be safe from foraging Yankee troopers. Indeed he could have had several
facilitics scattcred over the plantation,



Fittsylvania County Court records contain some entries that appear o shed
some additional light on the CSA supply base at Willow Tel. In the year 1862,
William Watson, an older brother of Isaac, filed an application with the Court w
erect a grist mill on Harpen Creek. It is significant that Watson's application
came in July, only two months after his brother Isaac returned from the
battlefront. Whereas most applications 1o erect grist mills in that era requirad
from one to two months and sometimes longer, Waison's took only four days.
Something was in the wind,

This potentially historic mill site is on the right bank of an open bend of
Harpen Creek at a point approximately a mile from the Willow Del mansion
house. The mill's location was known o native Ella Osborne, the present owner
of the site and to former Pitisylvanian, Rodney Hudson of Durham, NC who
visited it forty y=ars ago. They came to the assistance of a team of Pittsylvania
Historical Society researchers headed up by Buddy Gverbey, a Watson descendant.

The tearn found the site easily after being directed by Osborne and Hudson. Its
location was remote and ohscure in its time, and it appears to have been a well
engincered mill. It had two "runs” or pairs of millstones - four of which remain
on the site. The large size of the dam ruins and that of the millstones suggest
that it was a facility with considerable grinding capacity.

Overbey believes that since this was the only grist mill erectad in Pittaylvania
County during the Civil War, and that it was built on what was once a part of
the Willow Del plantation, it was meant to serve the Confederacy, at least in
part, as a Willaw Del facility.

Herman Melton, a county mill historian, agrees. Like its parent, the Willow
Dl Comumissary, the existence of the mill has only recently come to light.
Additional research should give the mill more historical importance. There is
little douht that some of its output went to the Army of Northern Virginia - and
perhaps most of it did for the next three years,

As for Watson's operation of the commissary, he used the resources at hand.
Slaves from the-region were placed wnder military orders, and under the
supervision of Captain Watson, ranged far and wide collecting produce from
county farms to be stockpiled at Willow Del. It is logical to assume that
Watson's operation was under the command of Major William T. Sutherlin of
Danville, who was Lee's chief Quartermaster for the region.

After the camnage ended at Appomattox. and the trying days of the
Reconstructicn came to a close, Willow Dcl once more became a tobacco
plantation. Watson resumed his position of leadership in the county and crowned
his career by representing it in the Virginia General Assembly.

Finally it is appropriate to note that the Willow Del Commissary is no
product of the imagination of lawer day romantics. According to Henson
Overbey, the existence of the Confederate supply center has been proven by the
pension department of the Commonwealth. Several men who worked under the
supervision of Captain Watson received pensions, giving proof to that effect.
She wrote that after Appomattox, the location of the commissary was made
known. It becarne a landmark and a symbol of pride for Fittsylvanians who, with
inordinate personal sacrifice, yielded their measure of supplies to the Army of
Norhern Virginia.

arcanum arcaporum - Willow Del
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